
YOUR community. YOUR voice.

Rushey Mead 
Community 

Meeting 
DATE: Monday, 7 March 2016
TIME: 6:30 pm
PLACE: Highfield Rangers Sports Club, 443 

Gleneagles Avenue, Leicester LE4 
7YJ

Ward Councillors

Councillor Piara Singh Clair MBE
Councillor Rita Patel
Councillor Ross Willmott



Conduct Guidance

The behaviour of people at ward community meetings is important to the success of 
the meeting. Everyone attending today’s meeting is kindly asked to comply with the 
following arrangements: 

• Respect the views of others 
• Keep to the Agenda
• One person speaks at a time
• Keep disruption to the minimum (mobile phones on silent) and no side 

discussions

If anyone does not comply with the guidance, they may be warned that they may be 
asked to leave the meeting.

Making Meetings Accessible to All
 
Access – Meetings are held in a variety of community venues. We will only hold 
meetings in venues where there is suitable access for wheelchairs. If you have any 
concerns about accessing a venue by wheelchair, please contact the Democratic 
Support Officer on the number given below.  If you feel you may not be able to hear 
what’s being discussed at a meeting please contact the Democratic Support Officer 
on the number below.

Braille / Audio tape / Translation
If you require this please contact the Democratic Support Officer (production times 
will depend upon equipment/facility availability).

Social Media - The Council is committed to transparency and supports efforts to 
record and share reports of proceedings of public meetings through a variety of 
means, including social media. If you wish to film proceedings at a meeting please 
let us know as far in advance as you can so that it can be considered by the Chair of 
the meeting who has the responsibility to ensure that the key principles set out below 
are adhered to at the meeting.

Key Principles.  In recording or reporting on proceedings you are asked:
 to respect the right of others to view and hear debates without interruption;
 to ensure that the sound on any device is fully muted ;
 where filming, to only focus on those people actively participating in the 

meeting;
 where filming, to (via the Chair of the meeting) ensure that those present are 

aware that they may be filmed and respect any requests to not be filmed



1. INTRODUCTIONS 

Councillors will elect a Chair for the meeting.

The Chair will introduce those present and make any necessary 
announcements.

The Chair and any other Councillors who are present will make any 
declarations as required by the Councillors Code of Conduct. 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

3. ACTION LOG OF PREVIOUS MEETING Appendix A

The Action Log of the meeting held on 1st December 2015 is attached and 
Members will be asked to confirm it as an accurate record. 

4. COUNCILLOR FEEDBACK 

5. UNIVERSAL CREDITS UPDATE 

There will be an update and information on the latest changes to Universal 
Credit and how it will impact on those affected.
 

6. LOCAL POLICING UPDATE 

A Police Officer will be at the meeting to provide an update on local policing 
issues in the Ward. 

7. CITY WARDEN UPDATE 

The City Warden will give an update on issues in the Ward. 

8. COMMUNITY MEETING BUDGET Appendix B

Councillors are reminded that under the Council’s Code of Conduct they 
should declare any interest they may have in budget applications.

An update will be given on the Ward Community Budget. A summary of grant 



applications submitted for consideration since the last meeting is attached.

9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

Help us to make improvements!

Please help us to improve Community Meetings by filling in an 
Evaluation sheet to let us know what you thought of the meeting. Thank 
you.

For further information, please contact
Anita Clarke, Community Engagement Officer: 0116 2211458 
(anita.clarke@leicester.gov.uk)

Or
Anita James, Democratic Support Officer: 0116 4546358 
(anita.james2@leicester.gov.uk)

www.leicester.gov.uk/communitymeetings

Contact address: Granby Wing, City Hall, 115 Charles Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ

http://www.leicester.gov.uk/communitymeetings


RUSHEY MEAD COMMUNITY MEETING

TUESDAY, 1 DECEMBER 2015

Held at: Harrison Road Methodist Church Hall, Harrison Road, Leicester LE4 
6QN

ACTION LOG

Present:
Councillor Patel (Chair)
Councillor Clair

NO. ITEM ACTION REQUESTED AT MEETING

13.  INTRODUCTIONS 
AND 
DECLARATIONS OF 
INTEREST 

Councillor Patel elected as Chair, welcomed 
everyone to the meeting and led introductions.
There were no declarations. 

14.  APOLOGIES FOR 
ABSENCE 

Councillor Willmott, Anita Miles. 

15.  ACTION LOG OF 
PREVIOUS 
MEETING 

The action log of the meeting held on 25th August 
2015 was circulated and confirmed as an accurate 
record.
Matters arising:

 3.4 Pavement parking on Clarke Street near 
Mellor School – There had been attempts to 
contact the school to arrange the meeting but 
there had been no response. The 
Neighbourhood Development Manager agreed 
to take this forward as an action.

 7 Litter on Rushey Fields – City Warden 
confirmed he had contacted Parks Services. 
Park wardens were now in place and regular 
warden checks were being carried out. Bins 
were emptied to a schedule.

 10 Sakhi Mandal bid – the group had written to 
say they would not be taking up the funding at 
this time and that money had gone back into 
the ward community budget.

 10 YOG magazine bid – it was confirmed this 
was a health magazine which would be 
available in the Belgrave and Rushey Mead 
Libraries.

 11.2 Boundary Change – Mellor School was 

Appendix A



no-longer in the Rushey Mead ward, it was 
confirmed that the Polling Station was under 
review and there had been suggestions to use 
an alternative venue at future elections. 

16.  LOCAL POLICING 
UPDATE 

Sgt Simon Walters gave an update on policing issues 
affecting the Rushey Mead ward and a comparison of 
reported crime statistics over the period 1 November 
to 1 December 2014 and 2015 were noted:
2014
Burglary of Dwelling:              19
Theft from Vehicle:                 1
Theft of Vehicles:                    11
Robbery:                                  0
2015
Burglary of Dwelling:               6
Theft from Vehicle:                  6
Theft of Vehicles:                     2
Robbery:                                  1
Sgt Walters reported that the robbery had taken place 
on 30 November on Gleneagles Avenue and police 
were confident they knew the main perpetrator and he 
would be apprehended.
Sgt Walters explained time was being invested in 
officers on the ground and during the past year 2 
prolific burglars had been dealt with leading to the 
reduction in this crime.
In relation to issues raised about Rushey Fields at the 
last meeting the police had been in contact with Jane 
Ushwell the Senior Parks Officer and a number of 
patch walks had been undertaken. Improvements 
were planned to reduce foliage, cut back shrubbery 
and overgrown trees, improve the lighting in the area 
and generally open it up to discourage people 
loitering. It was suggested that one pavilion building 
was to become a nursery and another would be 
demolished and the “mounds” would be removed too. 
The bowling green and play area would be focused 
on for removal of foliage and new benches and bins 
installed.
Residents were advised that Beat Surgeries would 
take place as follows:

 Saturday 5th December between 10 am and 12 
noon at the Recreation Centre on Gleneagles 



Avenue.
 Friday 11th December between 6pm and 7pm 

at Sainsburys.
Residents asked a number of questions which 
included the responses:

 Was the camera at the roundabout near 
Rushey Mead a traffic or crime camera? This 
was not a crime camera.

 Diwali firework went on very late into the night 
when should they have stopped? There were 
some exemptions to the Fireworks regulations 
on celebration nights such as Diwali, Chinese 
New Year, Christmas and New Year but on 
other nights fireworks should stop at 10.30pm.

 A petition had been presented to the council 
because of concerns about crime at Rushey 
Fields – Cllr Clair confirmed the petition would 
go through due process following presentation 
at full council last week. 

17.  CITY WARDEN 
UPDATE 

Mo Patel, City Warden provided information leaflets to 
those present and gave an update on issues in the 
Rushey Mead ward.
It was reported that:

 Kincraig Road Garages – the owners had been 
contacted and all rubbish removed and a new 
garage door put in place making a positive 
difference to the area.

 Meadow Way – a large fly tip was being dealt 
with, following a patch walk land owners had 
been contacted and agreed to clear the 
rubbish and replace damaged fencing. 
Contractors had also been engaged to put new 
fencing on the boundary of the land on 
Meadow Way.

 Bath Street – damaged fencing would be 
repaired.

 Bird Feeding – the number of complaints had 
dropped and a lot of work had been done to 
inform local residents of the problems with bird 
feeding. The situation would continue to be 
monitored.

 Dog Fouling – remained a very big issue for 
the ward, most complaints related to Harrison 
Road and Kincaple Road. An educational day 
was planned in the area with bags to be 
handed out to dog owners. Early mornings 



patrols were continuing but there were limited 
resources and only 1 warden covering two 
wards. Residents were encouraged to report 
all incidents of dog fouling and provide any 
information they could about the people or 
dogs they saw so that (i) it could be cleaned 
quickly (ii) wardens could get a picture of 
incidents occurring and try to tackle that 
directly. Wardens had the power to issue fixed 
penalty notices of £80 but could do this if they 
witnessed it or had proper evidence.

 There had been an increased use of the bulky 
waste and recycling facilities since a 500 
information letter drop to local residents.

 The City Warden was thanked for dealing with 
an issue of black bags in a garden.

 Residents were encouraged to report any 
matters such as graffiti, litter, fly tipping, dog 
fouling etc to the City Warden using the Love 
Leicester app which could be downloaded 
easily on to most mobile phones.

 Alternatively residents could contact City 
Warden on 0116 4541001 or by email: 
citywarden@leicester.gov.uk 

18.  WARD COMMUNITY 
BUDGET 

Councillors were reminded that under the council’s 
code of conduct they should declare any interest they 
may have in the budget applications.
Applications fast tracked since the last meeting:

 Shree Sarvodaya Samaj – Family Fun Activity, 
hire of venue. Application £190. Grant £190 
Fast Tracked.

Applications considered at the meeting:

 Rushey Mead Milap Group (1597) – a bid to 
help with hire charges of room hire. Application 
£2703.68 – Councillors agreed to support 50% 
of the bid to cover the charge to the end of this 
financial year. The group were asked to look at 
contributions they could make to offset against 
funding in the future as the council could not 
continue to provide 100% funding. Grant 
£1351.34 Supported.

 Rushey Fields Residents Association (1537) – 
Garden Group, a bid to purchase tools, 
equipment and plants to improve the 
community garden at Rushey Fields 
Recreation Ground. Application £490 – Grant 



£490 Supported.

 Dance Blast (5110) – To run a twice weekly 
dance fitness class. Application for £250. 
Deferred for more information to be provided.

 Art of Relaxing (1572) – To start a relaxation 
art group 2 hours each week.  Application 
£416.92 – Deferred for more information to be 
provided.

 Active Learning -Get It Checked Out – Cancer 
Awareness Project to produce a small 
information leaflet. Application for £625. 
Councillors wanted more information. Deferred 
for more information to be provided.

 Highfields Rangers – Application £2500. This 
was a late application received on the day of 
the meeting. Further details required to support 
application. Deferred for more information to 
be provided.

The Chair confirmed that the community ward budget 
was to help organisations with funding but it was 
important not to create dependency and groups 
should aim to be looking for match funding and to 
become self-sufficient in future as the funds were 
limited and were intended to be spread across the 
community and to give new groups an opportunity to 
become established. 

19.  ANY OTHER 
BUSINESS 

AOB 1 Feedback from previous funding recipient:
Jeetesh Chauhan thanked Councillors for supporting 
the Soar Valley fun day with £450 from the 
community ward budget. The day was very 
successful and they had used 2 rooms at Soar Valley 
college with a range of stalls offering health themed 
services. 276 people had attended and there had 
been a variety of activities for people to take part in 
such as Yoga, Body Pump, face painting, mehndi, 
and penalty shoot-out, food and drink stalls and 
feedback from those attending was very good and it 
was hoped the day could be repeated next year.
AOB 2 A resident raised concerns about the junction 
between Pain Street and Melton Road where 
inconsiderate parking was causing problems. 
Sgt Walters agreed to pass concerns on to 
enforcement officers.
AOB 3 A resident asked what had happened to the 
open gym that had been promised for Rushey Fields. 
Cllr Clair confirmed that funding had been put in place 



for this however there had been some issues with the 
procurement process and the suppliers had been 
unable to provide equipment so the procurement 
process had to be restarted. It was confirmed that 
although there was a delay there would be an open 
gym installed as soon as possible. 

20.  DATE OF NEXT 
MEETING 

The next meeting to take place on Monday 7th 
March at 6.30pm.

There being no other business the meeting was 
closed at 7.54pm. 



Budget Allocation 2014/15: £18,000.00

Bid 
No.

Type 
of 
Bid

Date bid 
received

Organisation / 
Applicant Name

Project Name Project
Summary

Funding Amount 
Requested

5137 J 10/12/15 Leicester 
Bharat/Santan
a Football Club

Supporting Childrens 
development through 
community football – 
Easter Programme

To provide Easter coaching 
programme in the area for 
children 5-14 yrs during 
Easter holidays at the Rushey 
Pavilion.

£1085

5138 J 10/12/15 Highfield 
Rangers 
Sports & Social 
Club

Family Funday To hold a family fun day at 
Highfield Rangers on 26 May 
2016

£1250

5141 J 6/1/16 Belgrave 
Allotment 
Society

Installation of an 
Ecotoilet

Replace existing toilet 
facilities with Ecotoilet

£400

5144 J 15/1/16 Shree Sanatan 
Mandir & 
Community 
Centre

Holi Celebration on 
Cossington Park

Towards the costs of the 
event, crowd safety, St John 
Ambulance, traffic 
management and water

£1000

1664 I 5/2/16 Jeetesh 
Chauhan

Summer Garba and 
Raas – 7 events

Raas/Garba evening 2nd July 
2016 at Prajapati Hall aimed 
at all communities and ages

£490

A
ppendix B




	Agenda
	3 ACTION LOG OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	Minutes

	8 COMMUNITY MEETING BUDGET

